
I 

I 

I 

Minutes of the Regular Council meeting held November 19, 1979 in the Avondale City 
Council Chambers at 7:30 p.m. 

t~EMBERS PRESENT 
Mayor Lorenz and Councilmembers: 

MEMBERS ABSENT/EXCUSED 
Council member 

ALSO PRESENT 
City Manager 
City Attorney 
Public Works Director 
Parks Director 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Included with the agenda were the minutes 
Councilman Hontgomery seconded and it was 
as submitted. 

CANVASS OF PRH1ARY ELECTION.. 

Bruce Lundmark 
Lowell Riefkohl 
A. B. Sernas 
Walter Crane 
Lon ~1ongtomery 

Harry Lantz 

Carlos Palma 
Frank Ross 
Larry Ramirez 
Henry Beltran 

of November 5, 1979. ~·1ayor Lorenz moved, 
unanimously carried to approve the minutes 

The t1ayor and Council were given the results of the 1979 Primary Election held 
November 13, 1979. The following are the results: 

Total number of ballots cast: 
Total number of spoiled ballots: 
Total number of questioned ballots: 

789 
8 

10 

The ten questioned ballots were verified by the County Elections Department and 
were all found to be invalid. 

Lorenz, Dessie M. 
Watkins, Billy B. 

Lundmark, Bruce 
t1ontgomery, Lon 
Rohla, Don 
Sernas, A.B. 
Thorne, Bob 
Wilt, Jerry 

FOR t1AYOR 

FOR COUNCIL 

411 
353 

457 
514 
271 
412 
169 
344 

Councilman Lundmark moved, Councilman Montgomery seconded and it was unanimously 
carried to accept the 1979 Primary Election results as submitted by the City Clerk. 

CQt.1t1UNITY CENTER USE - ELIZABETH TEQUIDA 
Elizabeth Tequida submitted an application for the use of the Community Center for 
a wedding reception. In her application, Ms Tequida requested permission to serve 
alcoholic beverages. t·1ayor Lorenz asked if the City Attorney drafted an ordinance 
against this? t·1r. Palma stated that an ordinance is now being processed and will 
be presented to the t1ayor and Council at the next meeting. Councilman Crane moved, 

-1-



Councilman Hontgomery seconded and it was unanimously carried to deny the request 
of serving alcoholic beverages at the Community Center. 

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF LA RAZA - GUIDO ARDAYA - LABOR SURVEY 
~·1r. Guido Ardaya representing ~1r. Lay Gibson presented the final draft of the I 
Labor Survey. This survey will help the City in planning and industrial develop-
ment. He stated that the report is in two parts. Mr. Ardaya stated that if the 
survey is acceptable, they would like to have any suggestions or comments. He 
further stated that the Council of La Raza has submitted its application to EDA 
for funding for next fiscal year, and EDA has advised them of its approval. 
Mr. Palma stated that the Council of La Raza, Guido Ardaya, Steve Poquette and 
Bruce Hilby have been very instrumental in assisting the City in developing 
the City's industrial development capability. Mr. Ardaya stated that several 
people have been very helpful in compiling the survey report and letters should 
be sent to these individuals. 

Mayor Lorenz thanked r.1r. Ardaya for making the presentation. 

REZONING APPLICATION - NICHOLAS YATRON 
Mr. Palma stated that the application submitted by Nicholas Yatron to rezone 
his property located at the southeast corner of Litchfield and State 85 from 
R-5 to C-2 has been presented to the Planning & Zoning Board and the Board has 
approved the request. Mr. Palma stated that City Staff is recommending its 
approval. Vice-Mayor Riefkohl moved to approve the request made by Mr. Yatron 
with the stipulation that if the property is not developed within one year from 
its approval, the property will revert back to R-5. Councilman Crane seconded 
the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION - NICHOLAS YATRON I 
Mr. Palma explained to the Council that this application was presented to the 
~1ayor and Council at the last meeting for their consideration. At this time, 
City Staff recommends postponement of the application because there is an 
additional item that must be reviewed by the Council before the application can 
be acted on. Mr. Palma stated that the application for the moving of buildings 
could not be presented to the Council tonight because there are some items that 
must be reviewed by other departmentheads in order to comply with Ordinance #168. 

Mr. Yatron asked what items must be reviewed. Mr. Palma stated that first of 
all, the rezoning had to be reviewed and approved. Now that this has been ap-
proved, the necessary steps in proceeding with the transportation, condition, etc. 
of the building must be reviewed by the appropriate officials. Also, the trans
portation application must be presented to the Planning & Zoning Board and then 
to the Mayor and Council. Mayor Lorenz moved to table the matter of the liquor 
license. Councilman Montgomery seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 

BIDS - TENNIS COURTS PROJECT 
Mr. Palma reported the bid results 
are the companies that submitted a 

LIGHTING 
Ess Lighting 
B. B. Lighting 

CONCRETE 
Gilbert Concrete 
J & E Construction 

for the tennis courts project. 
bid: 

-2-

$10,580 
11 ,608 

21,000 
15,836 

The fall owing 

I 



I 

I 

I 

FENCING 
American Fencing 
Acme Fence 
Hurricane Co. 

$ 2,457 
2,444 
2,967 

Councilman Lundmark asked what the total available funds are. Mr. Palma stated 
$32,000. He further stated that if all the low bids are approved, the total amount 
of all bids is less than the project amount. Mr. Palma explained to the Council 
that the first bid result was higher than the project amount. Hr. Palma stated that 
City Staff recommends that the bids be awarded to the low bidders. Vice-Mayor 
Riefkohl moved, Councilman Lundmark seconded and it was unanimously carried to award 
the bid to the low bidders as follows: 

LIGHTING: 
CONCRETE: 
FENCING: 

Ess Lighting 
J & E Construction 
Acme Fence 

$10,580. 
15,836. 
2,444. 

Mr. Palma stated that if the other side needs fencing, there will be no problem in 
financing the fencing. 

CONFERENCE - PARKS & RECREATION 
Mr. Palma requested authorization to allow the Parks & Recreation Director to attend 
the Annual Parks & Recreation conference to be held November 28 thru 30th in Yuma 
Arizona. Councilman Crane moved, Councilman Sernas seconded and it was unanimously 
carried to allow the Parks & Recreation Director attend the conference. 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OPERATOR 
Mr. Palma requested authorization to increase the salary for the treatment plant 
operator. He stated that the City is having difficulties in keeping qualified 
operators because of salary range. At present, the salary is set at $10,171 under 
the range scale of 16-A. He stated that City Staff requests a salary under 19-A 
which would be $11,772.80. This would bring the salary up to what other small 
communities are paying treatment· plant operators. 

Councilman Lundmark asked how long the present operator has been certified? ~r. 
Palma stated that at present, the City is advertising for a treatment plant operator 
because the plant operator has just resigned. However, the previous operator has 
moved back to the City and is now working for the City as the treatment plant oper
ator on a temporary basis. At this time, he is attending school to get his certifi
cation. Mr. Palma explained to the Council that the City will be paying the plant 
operator a competitive salary. At present, the County pays a plant operator $12,000. 

Councilman Lundmark asked what the salary would be under 20-A. He stated that it 
seems that the salary increase under 19-A Classification will not be competitive for 
too long. Mr. Palma stated that this is true, however, there are other employees 
and it would not be fai\r to them. Mr. Palma stated that a portion of the increase 
will have to be charged to contingencies. Councilman Lundmark moved, Vice-Mayor 
Riefkohl seconded and it was unanimously carried to increase the salary for the 
plant operator to 19-A Classification and to charge the increase to the contingency 
fund. 

WASTEWATER TREAH1ENT PLANT RESTORATION UPDATE 
Mr. Ramirez informed the Council on the status of the restoration work at the treat
ment plant. He stated that at the last report, City Staff informed the Council that 
the City was waiting for APS in relation to the electrical work. He stated that APS 
is sti 11 ho 1 ding up the work. Mr. Ramirez reported that Arizona Health Services has 

-3-



requested that a report be submitted to them reflecting the status in respect to 
the restoration work. 

Mr. Ramirez stated that on November 14, Clty Staff met with Arizona Health 
Services officials and MAG officials to discuss the restoration work and I 
on the status of expenditures incurred. The Council was presented a status 
report which was submitted to Arizona Health Services. He explained to the 
Council that the City is continuing the restoration work, but since the funds 
are not coming in from FDAA, the City has had to reject the bid submitted by 
Robb Construction for a bid in the amount of $150,500. The City has done some 
of the work such as purchasing of the,cffitrifugal pumps, piping, and electrical 
work. He further stated that as soon the appraisal is completed, City Staff will 
negotiate for the land. 

Mr. Ramirez pointed out that Avondale has designated Goodyear as the lead agency 
and Goodyear has already completed the first step which is the Plan Study. Mr. 
Ramirez stated that the Plan Study sets up the 11 scene 11 or rather a concept of 
the report. After the Plan of Study will come the scope of work. Mr. Ramirez 
stated that the Plan of Study as submitted by Mark Frank has brought out some 
areas in question. He stated that some of the concerns are in the Reems Road 
Plant. He stated that some areas in Goodyear were not' included and·some areas ·io 
Avondale were not included in the map. ~1r. Ramirez stated that City Staff has '' 
advised MAG officials that the map must be amended to include all areas in Avqndale 
now r~ther than when the consultant is ready to start the work. The map should.'be 
amended to include all Avondale boundaries from 107th Avenue to Dysart, to Broadway. 
City Staff is also requesting that the Cashion area be included in the map. 

In Goodyear, the areas to be included will be on the western boundary. From 
Sarival to Cotton Lane, to Thomas on the north, south to Yuma Road, east to Reems 
Road and south to Broadway which will include areas south of the airport. 

Mayor Lorenz asked if Litchfield Park has decided to take part in the planning 
stage. Mr. Ramirez stated that in a letter dated September 12, 1979, Litchfield 
Park Service Company informed Ernie Kleinschmidt that at this time they would not 
participate in the planning process. Mr. Ramirez stated that Litchfield Park will 
construct a plant at their present location which will eliminate the El Mirage 
interceptor. 

Mr. Ramirez stated that another part that must be deleted will be pages 6, 7, 8, and 
9 of the report because it is a repetition of the 208 Study and is not pertinent 
to this report. Also on page 13, #13, City Staff is requesting amendment to the 
final analysis to the cost share. Since the City is a rural community and since 
there are some monies available, the City may be eligible for funding for wastewater 
projects under fiscal year 1980. This will allow the City to apply for funds from 
other sources. The reason for the change on the financial aspect is to have them 
separated so that the City does not find out that it cannot afford a sewer plant in 
the future. 

Mr. Ramirez stated that if these changes are not made, City Staff has instructed 
the City Engineer to prepare the changes so that they will be presented at a public 
meeting so that our oppositions will be known. Mr. Ramirez stated that the City has 
not received any information as to the City• s appeal relating to the funds· approved 
by FDAA. 

Mr. Palma stated that MAG officials asked City officials if the City was restoring 
the sewer plant on an interim basis; as this assumption was made by someone and 
this of course, prevented the City from obtaining additional funds from EDA. Mr. 
Palma stated that if the City had classified the work as interim work, the City 

-4-

I 

I 



I 

I 

I 

would have been obligated to abandon the present plant. 

LIBRARY CHARGES 
Mrs. Carol Hansen, Avondale Librarian addressed the Council relating to the possi
bility of instituting a minimal charge to area residents to use the Avondale Lib
rary. This fee would of course, be only for patrons who are not Avondale residents. 
The proposed fee would be $3.00 for their initial card and 50 cents yearly renewal. 
Mrs. Hansen stated that the matter has been discussed with the County and State. 

Mr. Palma stated that he has met with Mrs. Hansen and Mrs. Hazelton and he re
commends approval of the fee. He stated that if the Council approves this, it will 
have to be according to the auditors and City Attorney recommendations. 

Councilman Montgomery asked if the fee is approved, will this help the Library 
become self-sustaining. Mr. Palma stated no, however, it will help in funding 
library projects. Mayor Lorenz, moved, Councilman Montgomery seconded and it was 
unanimously carried to approve the fee to non-residents only with the condition 
that the City Attorney and Auditors review and accept their recommendation. 

GOODYEAR AREOSPACE 
Mr. Palma informed the Council that Goodyear Areospace officials have requested that 
the City provide them with the service of a street sweeper to clean up the parking 
lot. They have statedthat they will pay for the man hours used. ~1r. Palma 
stated that he informed them that he would check with the Public Works Director to 
see if the sweeper and crew is available. He stated that he did discuss the matter 
with the Public Works Director and there is no problem in providing this service. 
Vice-Mayor Riefkohl moved, Councilman Montgomery seconded and it was unanimously 
carried to allow the request for a street sweeper. 

1978-79 AUDIT REPORT 
Mr. Palma requested that the Council review the 1978-79 audit report as it will 
be discussed at the next meeting. 

INSURANCE PACKAGE 
Mr. Palma informed the Council thati.the present insurance agent has extended the 
expiration date on the City's liability insurance to December 3rd, at which time 
the Council will review the RFP's received. 

Mr. Palma requested permission to be out of town on November 21-23. Permission 
granted. 

WATER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
Mr. Palma informed the Council that City Staff has met with the City Engineer 
to discuss the water improvement project. He stated th&the City will be working 
with four different agencies for funding purposes plus the City will have to fund 
part of the project which will probably be in form of bonds. ~1r. Palma suggested 
that a citizens committee should be appointed to allow residents express their 
ideas. He also stated that at least two councilmembers should serve on the 
committee. 

COUNCILMEN'S BUSINESS 
Councilman Lundmark requested that he should be notified of cancellations of any 
meetings, etc. Mr. Lundmark pointed out that he was not notified that the meeting 
scheduled for November 15th in regards to the insurance policy has been postpone. 
Mr. Palma apologized and informed him that this would not happen again. 

Vice-Mayor Riefkohl stated that Councilman Lundmark will have to take the alternate's 

-5-



place at the CDBG meeting because he will be out of town. 

Councilman Sernas thanked all present for taking time in voting and for supporting 
the present Council. 

Councilman Crane congratulated the Council on their new term. 

Mayor Lorenz stated that Willie Young has requested that she sent a letter 
of support for a Boy•s Club in Avondale. Mrs. Lorenz stated that she will write 
the letter if the Council is in agreement. The Council was in agreement. 

ADJOURN~1ENT 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Councilman Crane 
moved to adjourn the meeting. Councilman Lundmark seconded the motion. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 

-6-

I 

I 

I 


